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Request for Proposal Addendum  

Community-Based SARS CoV-2 Diagnostic Testing Services  

AUGUST 1, 2022 – JULY 31, 2023 
Deadline for RFP submission: July 15, 2022, 4:00pm CDT 

 
1. Do you have any volume forecasts daily, weekly and monthly?  

ANSWER: No volume forecasts.  At this time, it is difficult to predict the volume of 

testing because the pandemic has been very fluid.  Nevertheless, the successful applicant 

will demonstrate the capacity to scale up and scale down as dictated by testing 

demands.  Please indicate what the organization proposes to provide within the limits of 

no more than $84,500 per month.  Proposals may provide a number of options, 

including mobile testing, different numbers of sites and/or different numbers of tests, 

and different days of the week and hours of operation. 

 

2. Do you have a volume forecast on the split between PCR versus Rapid Antigen 

tests?  

ANSWER: No volume forecasts.  Based on the proposer's experience and what they 

know about the City of St. Louis community, propose the PCR versus Rapid Antigen Test 

split.  However, there must be a PCR option. 

 

3. How many locations and what schedules are anticipated for collecting PCR and 

antigen test samples?  

ANSWER: Please indicate what the organization proposes to provide within the limits of 

no more than $84,500 per month, based upon the proposer's experience and what they 

know about the City of St. Louis community.  Proposals may provide a number of 

options, including mobile testing, different numbers of sites and/or different numbers of 

tests, and different days of the week and hours of operation.  No costs should be 

attributable to rental of space unless the proposal is for more than one location at 1520 

Market St.  One location is anticipated to be provided rent-free at 1520 Market St.  The 

successful applicant will work with the City of St. Louis Department of Health to identify 

areas of need and establish access points in a manner that is equitable and meets the 

communities' needs. 

 

  



4. Will locations be provided to collect PCR samples and antigen test samples in the 

City of St. Louis, and if so, how many?  

ANSWER: It is anticipated that one site may be at 1520 Market St. (first floor) to provide 

for testing.  Proposer may recommend additional sites based upon proposer's 

experience and what they know about the City of St. Louis community, but the City of St. 

Louis Department of Health reserves the right to designate other locations based on 

need.  Budgets and expenditures must not exceed $84,500 per month and should 

include any rental or other costs for sites in addition to the 1520 Market St. site.  

Proposals may provide a number of options, including mobile testing, different numbers 

of sites and/or different numbers of tests, and different days of the week and hours of 

operation.   

 

5. Will a location be provided to set up a CLIA certified laboratory for rapid antigen 

testing in the City of St. Louis, and if so, how many?  

ANSWER: No, the proposer is responsible for the provision and location of the CLIA-

certified laboratory site.  Costs for the site and its processing of the PCR tests and 

antigen tests attributable to this RFP must be included in the proposal.   

 

6. If we offer the RV / mobile van with onsite testing, would the City designate 

locations / parking?  

ANSWER: Yes.  Proposer may recommend designated sites for mobile testing as well as 

sites in addition to 1520 Market St. for testing, based upon proposer's experience and 

what they know about the City of St. Louis community, but the City of St. Louis 

Department of Health reserves the right to designate other locations, based on need.  

Budgets and expenditures should include the costs associated with sites in addition to 

1520 Market St. and must not exceed $84,500 per month.  The successful applicant will 

work with the City of St. Louis Department of Health to identify areas of need and 

establish access points in a manner that is equitable and meets the communities' needs.   

 

7. Does the vendor need to be able to process nasopharyngeal, oropharyngeal and 

saliva PCR samples or selective to one or more?  

ANSWER: Organizations must be able to conduct and process nasopharyngeal, 

oropharyngeal and saliva PCR samples, and demonstrate experience conducting them in 

the last 18 months. 

 

8. Will there be multiple vendors that will be awarded? 

ANSWER: It is anticipated that one contract to one proposer may be awarded.  However, 

as set forth on page 6 of the RFP, the City of St. Louis Department of Health reserves the 

right to reject any and all proposals submitted; to select one or more respondents; to 

void this RFP and the review process and/or terminate negotiations at any time; to select 

separate respondents for various components of the scope of services; to select final 

team members from among the proposals received in response to this RFP. 

  



 

9. I am writing to inquire if this new RFP Due by 7/15/22 was awarded prior to the 

new solicitation and to whom? 

ANSWER: No.    

 

10. At page 5 of the RFP, #16 requires applicants to: "Operate from an asset-based 

approach to community work". I was wondering if you could elaborate what 

exactly is meant by that.  

ANSWER: In general, an asset-based approach treats the patient, their gifts/talents, 

personality, culture, where they live, and everything about them as valuable and worthy 

of respect and builds on the assets found in the community, mobilizing individuals, 

associations and institutions to come together and to build on their assets – not 

concentrate on their needs.  There is a different attitude that develops from that care 

perspective.  It is another way to treat people where they are and to provide Culturally 

and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS). 

 

11. In an effort to maximize the value of the program at $84K/ month, would the DOH 

entertain proposals where the locations are: 

a. hosted by public buildings in target neighborhoods (e.g. libraries, public 

schools, etc.? 

b. hosted by community-based organization partnerships?  

c. one or more large volume, drive thru and pedestrian walkup sites? 

d. one-time events and/or pop ups that distribute resources across a larger 

area?   

ANSWER: Yes, this reflects an asset-based approach (see answer to #10 above).  Hosting 

in public buildings in neighborhoods of focus would be fine to propose.  Proposals may 

provide a number of options, including mobile testing, different numbers of sites and/or 

different numbers of tests, and different days of the week and hours of operation.  It is 

anticipated that one rent-free site may be at 1520 Market St. (first floor) to provide for 

testing.  The successful applicant will work with the City of St. Louis Department of 

Health to identify areas of need and establish access points in a manner that is equitable 

and meets the communities' needs.  Hosting of testing by community-based 

organization partners may also be proposed, as may one or more large volume, drive 

thru and pedestrian walkup sites.  One-time events and/or pop ups that distribute 

resources across a larger area may be proposed, but there should be a consistent 

provision of testing services throughout the year, not just a one-time event. 

 

12. What languages would you like the testing centers to support, other than English 

and Spanish?   

ANSWER: At this point, those are the two primary languages that have been identified.  

However, if an area is identified and the language is not English or Spanish, it may be 

necessary to address that and to be flexible enough to find a way to communicate.  St. 

Louis has the largest population of Bosnians outside of Bosnia, for example.  We have a 

host of languages spoken, but ample resources in the community to assist. 

  



13. Does the DOH have a preference for having one or a couple of high-volume sites, 

or several smaller sites throughout the city? 

ANSWER: Proposals may provide a number of options, including mobile testing, 

different numbers of sites and/or different numbers of tests, and different days of the 

week and hours of operation.  Please indicate what the organization proposes to provide 

within the limits of no more than $84,500 per month, based upon the proposer's 

experience and what they know about the City of St. Louis community.  No costs should 

be attributable to rental of space unless the proposal is for more than the one location at 

1520 Market St.  One location is anticipated to be provided rent-free at 1520 Market St. 

The successful applicant will work with the City of St. Louis Department of Health to 

identify areas of need and establish access points in a manner that is equitable and 

meets the communities' needs. 

  


